RECORD GROWTH, STRONG
PROFITABILITY AND CONTROL
Through the concerted efforts of various departments, the Company’s balance sheet grew by more than $140
million in 2019. While keeping profitability in mind, we worked on non-credit risk revenue sources and stronger
controls.

BALANCE SHEET GROWTH

Relationship and Private Banking combined to grow deposits by over $120 million. This growth was accomplished
in the face of very strong rate competition from the local market. The biggest growth was in demand deposits ($71
million) and money market deposits ($60 million). We avoided time deposits for the most part as those would have
increased rate risk by tying us to higher rates in the face of the falling rates in the latter half of 2019.

NET INTEREST INCOME STABILITY

In early 2019, we put in place much tighter loan underwriting criteria to improve the quality and concentration
levels within the overall portfolio. Thanks to our very capable lending and credit staff, this resulted in only a small
($10 million) drop in the size of the loan portfolio. Even without loan growth and in the face of changing market
rates, we were still able to manage a $1.1 million improvement in net interest income after the provision for loan
and credit losses.

TRUST AND PRIVATE BANKING SERVICES

FNBSM’s Private Banking Group is now the clear entry point for affluent individuals. Private Banking is responsible
for over $47 million in deposits. This is a substantial responsibility and we revamped the professional level of our
Private Banking Group. The clear goal is to have those clients be the source of substantial increases in the assets
under management held by our Trust Department. Both departments have professional wealth management officers that work as a team. In 2019 the Trust Department set a new high for trust fee income of just over $2 million.

THE PURSUIT OF NON-INTEREST INCOME

Facing yield pressures on our high-quality loans and very competitive local rates on deposits, the Company has
established non-interest income vehicles that will bear much more success in the future.
in 2018 we signed with Elavon to provide our client merchants with credit card processing services.
• Late
We were able to sign on 76 merchants in 2019.
the end of 2019 we entered into an agreement with Pacific Coast Bankers Bank (PCBB) in which we
• Near
would offer their rate swap program.
entered into an agreement with Loan Depot to offer and provide settlement services for their loans.
• We
At the end of 2019 we had $2 million in closed loans and $4.5 million in approved loans that were pending
closing.

AN INVESTMENT IN A ROBUST AND SECURE IT ENVIRONMENT

The $500,000 increase in data processing expense went into an overhaul of our network infrastructure, stronger
cyber security measures and the engagement of a third party to monitor and report on the safety of client and
corporate data.
A common theme in the growth and income highlights above is a strong sense that we do things under firm
control. We never place growth or profitability ahead of having a safe and sound bank.

Bruce W. MacArthur
Chairman of the Board		
Chief Executive Officer		

Drew A. Dammeier		
Board Member		
President			

Veronica Birch Flores
Board Member
Chief Operating Officer
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
First Miami Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of First Miami Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Company”), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2019 and 2018,
and the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income, changes in stockholders’ equity and
cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.
Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Company’s
preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of First Miami Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, and the results
of their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Miami, Florida
January 31, 2020

FIRST MIAMI BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31,
ASSETS

2019

Cash
Due from banks – non-interest earning deposits
Due from banks – interest earning deposits
TOTAL CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Securities available-for-sale
Securities held-to-maturity
Loans, net
Premises and equipment, net
Other real estate owned, net
Other assets
TOTAL ASSETS

$

1,701,408
5,560,398
203,187,301

2018
$

1,717,504
4,998,843
69,344,378

210,449,107

76,060,725

109,337,598
36,356,180
539,536,772
7,849,008
2,112,000
7,247,682

89,418,270
44,291,903
549,523,298
7,967,282
3,104,179

$ 912,888,347

$ 770,365,657

$ 262,365,446
71,786,967
80,500,452
221,934,455
80,337,529
10,192,339

$ 191,314,208
77,108,284
84,330,261
161,987,997
79,211,715
10,832,532

727,117,188

604,784,997

29,565,704
9,780,906
20,000,000
6,025,589

34,969,367
6,723,230
20,000,000
1,851,144

792,489,387

668,328,738

1,000
7,999,000
117,906,834

1,000
7,999,000
99,935,058

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Deposits:
Demand
NOW accounts
Savings
Money market
Time, $100,000 and over
Other time
TOTAL DEPOSITS
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase
Deferred income tax liability, net
Notes payable
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (NOTES 11 AND 12)
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Common stock, $.01 par value, 100,000 shares
authorized and issued, including shares held in treasury,
at December 31, 2019 and 2018
Additional paid in capital
Retained earnings
Treasury stock, 12,765 and 12,745 shares, at cost,
at December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively
Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net
TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

(4,377,825)
(1,130,049)

(4,366,425)
(1,531,714)

120,398,960

102,036,919

$ 912,888,347

$ 770,365,657

THE Community Bank since 1952!
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FIRST MIAMI BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,
2019
INTEREST INCOME
Loans, including fees
Investment securities
Federal funds sold and interest earning deposits

$

INTEREST EXPENSE
Deposits
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase

NET INTEREST INCOME BEFORE PROVISION FOR LOAN AND CREDIT LOSSES
PROVISION FOR LOAN AND CREDIT LOSSES
NET INTEREST INCOME AFTER PROVISION FOR LOAN AND CREDIT LOSSES
NON-INTEREST INCOME
Customer service fees
Trust department income
Dividends
Rent and parking income
Other

28,519,660
2,300,644
2,793,156

2018

$

26,138,496
2,136,696
1,266,761

33,613,460

29,541,953

8,083,678
90,298

4,481,618
97,899

8,173,976

4,579,517

25,439,484

24,962,436

194,111

810,262

25,245,373

24,152,174

1,171,673
2,046,204
1,573,028
116,673
299,880

996,728
1,850,872
1,307,375
341,118
320,429

5,207,458

4,816,522

9,802,228
2,521,192
944,348
2,070,446
807,605
5,070,178

9,208,783
2,203,325
999,897
1,549,648
843,346
4,636,625

21,215,997

19,441,624

9,236,834

9,527,072

13,843,972

(6,336,903)

13,843,972

(6,336,903)

NON-INTEREST EXPENSES
Salaries
Employee benefits
Occupancy
Data processing
Professional fees
Other operating

INCOME BEFORE INVESTMENT GAIN (LOSS) ON AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE
SECURITIES AND OTHER-THAN-TEMPORARY IMPAIRMENT LOSSES
ON HELD-TO-MATURITY SECURITIES
INVESTMENT GAIN (LOSS) ON AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE SECURITIES
Net gain (loss) on fair value of equity securities available-for-sale

OTHER-THAN-TEMPORARY IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON
HELD-TO-MATURITY SECURITIES
Total other-than-temporary impairment losses

(32,059)

(25,214)

Net impairment losses recognized in earnings on held-to-maturity securities

(32,059)

(25,214)

INCOME BEFORE PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES
NET INCOME

$

23,048,747

3,164,955

4,640,793

280,133

18,407,954

THE Community Bank since 1952!
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$

2,884,822

FIRST MIAMI BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,
2019
Net income

$

18,407,954

2018
$

2,884,822

Available-for-sale securities:
Change in unrealized appreciation (depreciation) in securities available-for-sale
during the year, net of deferred income tax effect of approximately
$120,000 and $12,000, at December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively

344,748

(34,147)

Held-to-maturity securities:
Change in non-credit losses on other-than-temporarily impaired
held-to-maturity securities, net of deferred income tax effect of approximately
$33,000 and $34,000, at December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively

56,917

100,211

Comprehensive income

$

18,809,619

THE Community Bank since 1952!
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$

2,950,886

FIRST MIAMI BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

ADDITIONAL
PAID IN
CAPITAL

COMMON
STOCK
BALANCES AT JANUARY 1, 2018

$

1,000

$

7,999,000

RETAINED
EARNINGS
$

70,121,997

TREASURY
STOCK
$ (4,370,625)

ACCUMULATED
OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE
LOSS, NET
$

25,766,739

TOTAL
$

99,518,111

Cumulative adjustment for adoption of
new measurement of equity investment

-

-

33,427,239

-

(33,427,239)

-

Adoption of accounting standard related to
certain tax effects stranded in accumulated
other comprehensive income

-

-

(6,062,722)

-

6,062,722

-

Net income

-

-

2,884,822

-

-

Other comprehensive income

-

-

-

-

66,064

Repurchase of common stock

-

-

-

Sale of treasury stock

-

-

-

Cash dividends declared, $5 per share

-

-

BALANCES AT DECEMBER 31, 2018

1,000

7,999,000

(436,278)
99,935,058

(100)

2,884,822
66,064

-

4,300

-

-

-

(4,366,425)

(100)
4,300
(436,278)

(1,531,714)

102,036,919

Net income

-

-

Other comprehensive income

-

-

-

-

Repurchase of common stock

-

-

-

(11,400)

-

(11,400)

Cash dividends declared, $5 per share

-

-

-

-

(436,178)

BALANCES AT DECEMBER 31, 2019

$

1,000

$

7,999,000

18,407,954

(436,178)
$ 117,906,834

-

$ (4,377,825)

-

18,407,954

401,665

$

THE Community Bank since 1952!
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(1,130,049)

401,665

$

120,398,960

FIRST MIAMI BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,
2019
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Provision for loan and credit losses
Depreciation and amortization
Amortization of right-of-use assets
Impairment on held-to-maturity securities
Accretion of discounts on securities
Change in fair value of equity securities available-for-sale
Deferred income tax
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Other assets
Accrued expenses and other liabilities

$

$

194,111
678,673
638,169
32,059
264,515
(13,843,972)
2,904,805

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from sales, calls and maturities of
securities available-for-sale
Purchases of securities available-for-sale
Proceeds from paydowns of securities held-to-maturity
Net decrease (increase) in loans
Purchases of premises and equipment
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Borrowing on notes payable
Net increase in time deposits
Net increase (decrease) in demand, NOW, savings and money
market deposits
Net decrease in securities sold under agreements
to repurchase
Dividends paid
Net (repurchase) sale of common stock

28,782
15,741

8,589,854

9,278,277

5,568,731
(11,444,153)
7,993,751
7,755,896
(560,399)

7,835,408
(492,700)
11,268,689
(35,522,133)
(185,947)

9,313,826

(17,096,683)

485,621

10,000,000
43,561,137

121,846,570

(22,747,532)

(5,403,663)
(432,426)
(11,400)

NET CASH PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR
$

2,884,822

810,262
590,046
25,514
409,103
6,336,903
(1,822,896)

(37,782)
(648,678)

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR

18,407,954

2018

(12,584,165)
(434,996)
4,200

116,484,702

17,798,644

134,388,382

9,980,238

76,060,725

66,080,487

210,449,107

$

THE Community Bank since 1952!
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76,060,725

FIRST MIAMI BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,
2019

2018

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash paid during the year for:
Interest paid

$

8,182,653

$

4,566,670

Taxes paid
Cash dividends declared

$
$

1,867,065
436,178

$
$

1,983,014
436,278

$
$
$
$

90,087
464,449
2,112,000
4,743,890

$
$
$
$

Noncash items:
Amortization of the unrealized losses on securities
held-to-maturity
Change in unrealized gains on available for sale securities
Repossession of other real estate owned
Capitalization of right-of-use assets under operating leases

THE Community Bank since 1952!
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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134,238
(45,755)
-

FIRST MIAMI BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018
1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Business
First Miami Bancorp, Inc. and its wholly-owned subsidiary, First National Bank of South Miami (the “Bank”)
(collectively known as the “Company”) provide a variety of financial services to individuals and small businesses
through its offices in South Miami, The Falls, Coral Gables, and Doral, Florida. The Bank also has one limited
service facility that services retired individuals, Palace Renaissance branch. The Company’s primary deposit
products are checking, savings and term certificate accounts, and its primary lending products are commercial and
consumer loans.
Basis of Presentation and Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of First Miami Bancorp, Inc. and its wholly-owned
subsidiary, First National Bank of South Miami and its subsidiaries, First National South Miami Safe Deposit
Company, South Miami Ventures I, Inc., South Miami Ventures II, Inc., South Miami Ventures III, Inc., South Miami
Ventures IV, Inc., and FNBSM Coral Gables, LLC. South Miami Ventures I, Inc., South Miami Ventures II, Inc.,
South Miami Ventures III, Inc., South Miami Ventures IV, Inc. and FNBSM Coral Gables, LLC which are all Florida
Limited Liability Companies for the purpose of holding real estate properties. All significant intercompany balances
and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.
Use of Estimates
In preparing consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America (“U.S. GAAP”), management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, as of the date of the balance sheet and reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Material estimates that
are particularly susceptible to significant change in the near term relate to the determination of the allowance for
loan losses, valuation of securities and the deferred income taxes.
Concentrations of Credit Risk
Most of the Company’s activities are with customers located within the South Florida area. At December 31, 2019
and 2018, approximately 94% and 96%, respectively, of the Bank’s loan portfolio was collateralized by commercial
real estate, of which 78% and 81%, respectively, is collateralized by non-owner occupied real estate.
Circumstances that negatively impact the real estate industry in South Florida could adversely impact the Bank’s
loan portfolio.
At various times during the year, the Bank has maintained deposits with other financial institutions in excess of
amounts received. The exposure to the Bank from these transactions is solely dependent upon daily balances and
the financial strength of the respective institution.
Note 2 describes the types of securities in which the Company invests.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
For purposes of the consolidated statements of cash flows, the Bank considers investments with a maturity of three
months or less from its original purchase date to be cash and cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents include
cash, balances due from banks which include interest and non-interest earning deposits.
The Company has interest earning deposit accounts in other financial institutions with maturities less than three
months. At December 31, 2019 and 2018, the weighted average interest rates on such deposit accounts were
1.55% and 2.39%, respectively.
Securities
Debt securities that the Company has the positive intent and ability to hold until maturity are classified as "held-tomaturity" and recorded at amortized cost. Securities that are held principally for the purpose of selling in the near
future are classified as trading securities and are recorded at fair value with both realized and unrealized gains and
losses included in the consolidated statements of operations.
THE Community Bank since 1952!
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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FIRST MIAMI BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018
1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Securities (Continued)
Debt securities not classified as held-to-maturity or trading are classified as available-for-sale and recorded at fair
value, with unrealized gains or losses, net of the related deferred tax effect, reported as a separate component of
other comprehensive income. Equity securities not classified as held-to-maturity or trading are classified as
available-for-sale and recorded at fair value through the consolidated statements of operations. Realized gains and
losses from the sales of securities are recorded on the trade date and are determined using the specific
identification method. Management determines the appropriate classification of securities as each individual
security is acquired. In addition, the appropriateness of such classification is reassessed at each balance sheet
date.
Premiums paid on available-for-sale securities with call features are amortized to the call date while securities
purchased at a discount are accreted to the maturity date. In both cases, they are amortized or accreted on a
straight line to maturity basis. Amortization expense and accretions of income on mortgage-backed securities are
recognized at a level yield to average life method with the average life determined based on the previous twelvemonth average CPR speed.
Declines in the fair value of held-to-maturity and available-for-sale securities below their cost that are deemed to
be other-than-temporary are reflected in earnings as realized losses. In determining whether other-than-temporary
impairment exists, management considers many factors, including (1) the length of time and the extent to which
the fair value has been less than cost, (2) the financial condition and near-term prospects of the issuer, and (3) the
intent and ability of the Company to retain its investments in the issuer for a period of time sufficient to allow for any
anticipated recovery in fair value and (4) whether it is more likely than not that the Company will be required to sell
securities in an unrealized loss position before any anticipated recovery in value.
Loans, net and Allowance for Loan Losses
Loans are reported at their recorded investment, which is the outstanding principal balance plus accrued interest
and net of any unearned income, such as deferred fees or costs, charge-offs, unamortized premiums or discounts
on originated loans, and allowance for loan losses. Interest on loans is recognized over the term of the loan and is
calculated on principal amounts outstanding. Certain loan origination fees and costs are deferred and the net
amount is recognized as an adjustment to interest income over the contractual life of the loans.
The allowance for loan losses reflects management’s judgment of probable loan losses inherent in the portfolio at
the balance sheet date. Management uses a disciplined process and methodology to establish the allowance for
loan losses each quarter. To determine the total allowance for loan losses, the Company estimates the reserves
needed for each segment of the portfolio including loans analyzed individually and loans analyzed on a pooled
basis.
To determine the balance of the allowance account, loans are pooled by portfolio segment of like risk and losses
are modeled using historical charge off rates, quantitative and other mathematical techniques over the loss
emergence period. Each class of loan exercises significant judgment to determine the estimated method that fits
the credit risk characteristics of its portfolio segment. For purposes of determining the allowance for loan losses,
the Company has segmented certain loans in the portfolio by product type and like risk. Loans are segmented into
the following pools: commercial, installment, commercial and residential real estate and home equity lines of credit.
The Company also sub-segments these segments into classes based on the associated risks within those
segments: consumer real estate, consumer non-real estate secured, commercial non-real estate secured,
commercial real estate, rental real estate and home equity line of credit. Management must use judgment in
establishing additional input metrics for the modeling processes. The models and assumptions used to determine
the allowance are independently validated and reviewed to ensure that their theoretical foundation, assumptions,
data integrity, computational processes, reporting practices, and end-user controls are appropriate and properly
documented.

THE Community Bank since 1952!
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FIRST MIAMI BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018
1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Loans, net and Allowance for Loan Losses (Continued)
Reflected in the portions of the allowance previously described is an amount for imprecision or uncertainty that
incorporates the range of probable outcomes inherent in estimates used for the allowance, which may change from
period to period. This amount is the result of the Company’s judgment of risks inherent in the portfolios, economic
uncertainties, historical loss experience and other subjective factors, including industry trends, calculated to better
reflect the Company’s view of risk in each loan portfolio. No single statistic or measurement determines the
adequacy of the allowance for loan loss. Changes in the allowance for loan loss and the related provision expense
can materially affect net income.
The establishment of the allowance for loan losses relies on a consistent process that requires multiple layers of
management review and judgment and responds to changes in economic conditions, member behavior, and
collateral value, among other influences. From time to time, events or economic factors may affect the loan portfolio,
causing management to provide additional amounts to or release balances from the allowance for loan losses. The
Company’s allowance for loan losses is sensitive to risk ratings assigned to individually evaluated loans and
economic assumptions and delinquency trends driving statistically modeled reserves. Individual loan risk ratings
are evaluated based on each situation by the credit risk management department in conjunction with the
Company’s Loan Committee.
Management monitors differences between estimated and actual incurred loan losses. This monitoring process
includes periodic assessments by the credit risk management department in conjunction with the Company’s Loan
Committee and the models used to estimate incurred losses in those portfolios. Additions to the allowance for loan
losses are made by charges to the provision for loan losses. Credit exposures deemed to be uncollectible are
charged against the allowance for loan losses. Recoveries of previously charged off amounts are credited to the
allowance for loan losses.
The total allowance reflects management’s estimate of loan losses inherent in the loan portfolio at the balance
sheet date. The Company considers the allowance for loan losses of $7,460,670 and $7,263,087 adequate to cover
loan losses inherent in the loan portfolio, at December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively.
Loans are generally fully or partially charged down to the fair value of collateral securing the asset when:
•
•
•
•
•

management judges the asset to be uncollectible;
repayment is deemed to be protracted beyond reasonable time frames;
the asset has been classified as a loss by either the internal loan review process or external examiners;
the borrower has filed bankruptcy and the loss becomes evident owing to a lack of assets; or
the loan is 90 days past due unless both well secured and in the process of collection.

In situations where, for economic or legal reasons related to a borrower’s financial difficulties, management may
grant a concession for other than an insignificant period of time to the borrower that would not otherwise be
considered, the related loan is classified as a troubled debt restructuring (“TDR”). Management strives to identify
borrowers in financial difficulty early and work with them to modify to more affordable terms before their loan
reaches nonaccrual status. These modified terms may include rate reductions, principal forgiveness, payment
forbearance and other actions intended to minimize the economic loss and to avoid foreclosure or repossession of
the collateral. In cases where borrowers are granted new terms that provide for a reduction of either interest or
principal, management measures any impairment on the restructuring as it does for impaired loans.
In addition to the allowance for the pooled portfolios, management has developed a separate allowance for loans
that are identified as impaired through a TDR. These loans are excluded from pooled loss forecasts and a separate
reserve is provided under the accounting guidance for loan impairment. Consumer loans whose terms have been
modified in a TDR are also individually analyzed for estimated impairment.
The Company’s grading analysis estimates the capability of the borrower to repay the contractual obligation of the
loan agreements as scheduled or at all. The Company’s internal credit risk grading system is based on experiences
with similarly graded loans. Credit risk grades are refreshed each quarter as they become available, at which time
management analyzes the resulting scores, as well as other external statistics and factors, to track loan
performances.
THE Community Bank since 1952!
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FIRST MIAMI BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018
1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Loans, net and Allowance for Loan Losses (Continued)
The Company’s internally assigned grades are as follows:
• Pass – No change in credit rating of borrower and loan-to-value ratio of asset.
• Special Mention – Loans that have potential weaknesses that deserve management’s close attention. If left
uncorrected, these potential weaknesses may result in deterioration of the repayment prospects for the asset
or in the Bank’s credit position at some future date. Special mention assets are not adversely classified and do
not expose the Bank to sufficient risk to warrant adverse classification.
• Substandard – Loans that are inadequately protected by the current sound worth and paying capacity of the
obligor or of the collateral pledged, if any. Assets so classified must have a well-defined weakness, or
weaknesses, that jeopardize the liquidation of the debt. They are characterized by the distinct possibility that
the Bank will sustain some loss if the deficiencies are not corrected.
Management considers a loan to be impaired when, based on current information and events, it is determined that
the Company will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the loan contract, including scheduled interest
payments. Determination of impairment is treated the same across all classes of loans. When management
identifies a loan as impaired, the impairment is measured based on a present value of expected future cash flows,
discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate, except when the source of repayment for the loan is the operation
or liquidation of the collateral. For a collateral dependent loan, the impairment is measured as the outstanding loan
amount versus the value of the collateral less costs to hold and sell. In these cases, management uses the current
fair value of the collateral, less selling costs when foreclosure is probable, instead of discounted cash flows. For
certain income producing properties management may not factor in liquidation costs if it is assumed that these
costs will be covered by the income generated by the underlying asset. If management determines that the value
of the impaired loan is less than the recorded investment in the loan (net of previous charge-offs, deferred loan
fees or costs and unamortized premium or discount), impairment is recognized through an allowance estimate or
a charge-off to the allowance for loan losses.
When the ultimate collectability of the total principal of an impaired loan is in doubt and the loan is on nonaccrual
status, all payments are applied to principal. When the ultimate collectability of the total principal of an impaired
loan is not in doubt and the loan is on nonaccrual status, contractual interest is credited to interest income when
received, under the cash basis method.
The Company generally places loans on nonaccrual status when the full and timely collection of interest or principal
becomes uncertain, part of the principal balance has been charged off and no restructuring has occurred or the
loans reach 90 days past due.
When management places a loan on nonaccrual status, the accrued unpaid interest receivable is reversed against
interest income and the loan is accounted on the cash or cost recovery method, until it qualifies for return to accrual
status. Generally management returns a loan to accrual status when (a) a reasonable workout plan has been
achieved with the borrower achieving a satisfactory performance history (b) all delinquent interest and principal
become current under the terms of the loan agreement or (c) the loan is both well-secured and in the process of
collection and collectability is no longer doubtful.
The Company has determined that the entire balance of a loan is delinquent if the minimum payment is not received
by the specified due date on the borrower’s statement. Interest and fees continue to accrue on past due loans until
the date the loan goes into nonaccrual status, if applicable.
Loan Commitments and Related Financial Instruments
Financial instruments include off-balance sheet credit instruments, such as commitments to make loans and
commercial and standby letters of credit issued to meet customer financing needs. The face amount for these items
represents the exposure to loss, before considering customer collateral or ability to repay. Such financial
instruments are recorded when they are funded. Instruments, such as standby letters of credit, that are considered
financial guarantees, are recorded at face value as an off-balance sheet credit instrument.
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FIRST MIAMI BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018
1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Loan Commitments and Related Financial Instruments (Continued)
In addition to the allowance for loan losses, the Company estimates probable losses for financial instruments with
off-balance-sheet risks, such as commercial and standby letters of credit and records these estimates in other
liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets. Provision for credit losses related to the financial instruments with
off-balance-sheet risks is reported in the consolidated statements of operations. Management considers past loss
experience and any other pertinent information.
Foreclosed Assets
Assets acquired through, or in lieu of, loan foreclosure are initially recorded at fair value less cost to see at the date
of foreclosure, establishing a new cash basis. Subsequent to foreclosure, valuations are periodically performed by
management and the assets are carried at the lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell. Revenues
and expenses from operations and changes in the valuation allowance are included in other expenses in the
accompanying consolidated statements of operations.
Premises and Equipment, Net
Premises and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Depreciation is
computed on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Leasehold improvements are
amortized over the remaining term of the applicable leases or their useful lives, whichever is shorter. Estimated
useful lives of these assets are as follows:
Leasehold improvements
Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Building

Shorter of useful life or term of lease
3 to 20 years
39 years

Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred; the costs of major improvements to the premises
are capitalized. Upon retirement or other disposition of furniture, fixtures or equipment, the cost and related
depreciation are removed from the accounts and gains or losses are reflected in operations.
Impairment of Long-Lived Assets
The Company’s long-lived assets, such as premises and equipment are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability
of assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to estimated
undiscounted future cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. If the carrying amount of an asset exceeds
its estimated future cash flows, an impairment charge is recognized for the amount by which the carrying amount
of the asset exceeds the fair value of the asset. Assets to be disposed of would be separately presented in the
balance sheet and reported at the lower of the carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell, and are no longer
depreciated. The assets and liabilities of a disposal group classified as held for sale would be presented separately
in the appropriate asset and liability sections of the balance sheet. The Company did not recognize any impairment
charge during the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018.
Federal Funds Purchased
The Bank has a federal funds purchased line of credit facility with another financial institution that is not to exceed
$5,000,000. Additionally, the Bank has a federal funds purchased line of credit facility with another financial
institution that is not to exceed $6,000,000. The Bank had no outstanding federal funds purchased as of December
31, 2019 and 2018.
The lines of credit are intended to support short-term liquidity needs.
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1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Income Taxes
Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying
amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and operating loss and tax credit
carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable
income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on
deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the
enactment date. For additional information, see Note 9.
The Company recognizes and measures tax positions taken or expected to be taken in its tax return based on their
technical merit and assesses the likelihood that the positions will be sustained upon examination based on the
facts, circumstances and information available at the end of each period. Interest and penalties on tax liabilities, if
any, would be recorded in interest expense and other operating expense, respectively.
Revenue from Contracts with Customers
Effective January 1, 2018, the Company adopted the new accounting standard applicable to revenue from contracts
with customers (“Topic 606”) (“ASU 2014-09”) using the modified retrospective approach. The new guidance
implements a common revenue standard that clarifies the principles for recognizing revenue. The core principle is
that an entity should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services. To achieve that core principle, an entity should apply the following steps: (i) identify the contract(s) with a
customer, (ii) identify the performance obligations in the contract, (iii) determine the transaction price, (iv) allocate
the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract and (v) recognize revenue when (or as) the
entity satisfies a performance obligation.
The Company concluded that there is no change to the timing and pattern of revenue recognition for its current
revenue streams in scope of Topic 606, therefore, no adjustment to retained earnings was required on the adoption
date. Because there is no change to the timing and pattern of revenue recognition, there are no material changes
to the Company’s processes and internal controls.
The Company’s revenue from contracts with customers in the scope of Topic 606 is recognized within non-interest
income, see Note 10. Following is a discussion of key revenues within the scope of Topic 606. The Company
provides services to customers which have related performance obligations that the Company completes to
recognize revenue. The Company’s revenues are generally recognized either immediately upon the completion of
the service or over time as the Company performs the services. Any services performed over time generally require
that the Company renders services each period and therefore the Company measures progress in completing
these services based upon the passage of time.
Service Charges on Deposit Accounts
Service charges on deposit accounts are earned on depository accounts for customers and include fees for account
and overdraft services. Account charges include fees for periodic account maintenance activities and event-driven
services such as stop payment fees. The Company’s obligation for event-driven services is satisfied at the time of
the event when the service is delivered, while the Company’s obligation for maintenance services is satisfied over
the course of each month. The Company’s obligation for overdraft services is satisfied at the time of the overdraft.
Digital Banking Related Revenue - Treasury Management
The Company earns fees for Treasury Management products and services, which include but are not limited to
online cash management, remote deposit capture, and positive pay. These fees are recognized at (1) the time the
transaction or (2) at the end of the month in the case where service obligations are provided over the course of
each month.
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FIRST MIAMI BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018
1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Revenue From Contracts with Customers (Continued)
Wealth Management Related Revenue
The Company manages monies as a trustee or as an investment agent. The Company has a portfolio manager
who uses ETFs and mutual funds, as well as separately managed accounts, utilizing an outside manager from
time to time. The Company does not provide investment brokerage services. Fees earned by the Company from
Wealth Management and Advisory activities are generally satisfied over time, while obligations for activities that
are transactional in nature are satisfied at the time of the transaction.
Debit, ATM and Merchant Card Related Fees and All Other Fees
Card fees include credit and debit card interchange and network revenues and various card-related fees. Cardrelated fees such as late fees, cash advance fees, and balance transfer fees are loan-related and excluded from
the scope of Topic 606. Credit and debit card interchange and network revenues are earned on credit and debit
card transactions conducted through payment networks such as Visa. The Company’s obligation is satisfied
concurrently with the delivery of services on a daily basis.
Cash network fees are earned for processing ATM transactions. The Company’s obligation is completed daily upon
settlement of ATM transactions.
The Company also earns revenues from a revenue sharing agreement with a third party who provides credit card
services for the Company’s customers. The revenue sharing agreement calculates fees owed to the Company
based on interchange and application amounts and levels. This share of fees is remitted to the Company each
month, at which time the performance obligation is fulfilled and revenue is recognized.
Wire transfer and other remittance fees consist of fees earned for funds transfer services and issuing cashier’s
checks and money orders. The Company’s obligation is satisfied at the time of the funds transfer services or upon
issuance of the cashier’s check or money order.
All other fees include various types of fees earned on services to customers which have related performance
obligations that the Company completes to recognize revenue, which are generally recognized over time as the
Company performs the services.
Gains/Losses on Sales of Repossessed Real Estate (“OREO”)
The Company records a gain or loss from the sale of OREO when control of the property transfers to the buyer,
which generally occurs at the time a deed is executed. There are no Topic 606 implications unless the Company
finances the sale of OREO. The Company did not sell any OREO during the year ended December 31, 2019.
Treasury Stock
At December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Company had 100,000 shares of authorized common stock. The number of
shares issued and outstanding were 87,235 and 87,255, respectively, with the remaining shares held in treasury.
From time to time, the Company is approached by stockholders wishing to sell their shares. The Board of Directors
considers such proposals on a case-by-case basis, considering market conditions, available cash resources, and
other factors. During 2019 and 2018, the Company purchased 20 and 2 shares, respectively, of its common stock.
Employee Benefit Plan
In 1999, the Company converted the profit sharing plan to a 401(k) Plan (the “Plan”), whereby substantially all
employees participate in the Plan. All existing Plan participants were immediately vested in the new Plan. After one
year of service, employees may contribute up to 50 percent of their compensation to the Plan on a tax deferred
basis subject to certain limits based on federal tax laws. Additionally, the Company has made matching
contributions to the Plan. Matching contributions are immediately vested to the employee. For the years ended
December 31, 2019 and 2018, the matching contributions attributable to the Plan amounted to approximately
$270,000 and $228,000, respectively.
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FIRST MIAMI BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018
1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Comprehensive Income
U.S. GAAP requires that recognized revenue, expenses, gains and losses be included in net income when earned
or incurred. Certain changes in assets and liabilities, such as unrealized gains and losses on some available-forsale debt securities, as well as the accretion of the other-than-temporary impairment recognized in comprehensive
income for debt securities classified as held-to-maturity, are reported as a separate component of the equity section
of the consolidated balance sheets. Such changes in assets and liabilities from transactions or events not involving
the owners, along with net income, are components of comprehensive income. Comprehensive income for the
periods presented is displayed in the accompanying consolidated statements of comprehensive income. As of
January 1, 2018, the Company’s investment in equity securities had a cost basis of $9,262,579 and accumulated
unrealized gains of $33,427,239. As a result of adopting new accounting principles, the accumulated unrealized
gains were reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive income (“AOCI”) to retained earnings during the
year ended December 31, 2018.
Fair Value of Financial Instruments
Fair values of financial instruments are estimated using relevant market information and other assumptions, as
more fully disclosed in Note 16. Fair value estimates involve uncertainties and matters of significant judgment
regarding interest rates, credit risk, prepayments, and other factors, especially in the absence of broad markets for
particular instruments. Changes in assumptions or in market conditions could significantly affect the estimates.
Interest Rate Risk
The Company’s performance is dependent, to a large extent, on its net interest income which is the difference
between income on interest-earning assets and its interest expense on interest-bearing liabilities. The Company,
like most financial institutions, is affected by changes in general interest rate levels and by other economic factors
beyond its control. Interest rate risk arises from mismatches between the dollar amount of repricing or maturing
assets and liabilities (the interest rate sensitivity gap). A condition whereby more liabilities reprice or mature than
assets over a given time frame is considered a liability-sensitive position, or a negative gap.
An asset-sensitive position will generally enhance earnings in a rising interest rate environment and will negatively
impact earnings in a falling interest rate environment, while a liability-sensitive position will generally enhance
earnings in a falling interest rate environment and negatively impact earnings in a rising interest rate environment.
Fluctuations in interest rates are not predictable or controllable. The Company has attempted to structure its asset
and liability management strategies to mitigate the impact on net interest income resulting from changes in market
interest rates.
Leases
Effective January 1, 2019, the Company adopted Accounting Standards Codification 842, Leases (“ASC 842”). The
Company determines if an arrangement contains a lease at inception based on whether or not the Company has
the right to control the asset during the control period and other facts and circumstances.
Lessee
The Company evaluates the classification of leases as operating or finance at inception. Leases that meet one or
more of the following criteria will be classified as finance leases:
•
•
•
•

The Company can acquire the leased asset at the end of the lease term for a below-market price.
The ownership of the leased asset is transferred to the Company at the end of the lease period.
The duration of the lease encompasses at least 75% of the useful life of the leased assets.
The present value of the minimum lease payments under the lease represents at least 90% of the fair
value of the leased asset.
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1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Lessee (Continued)
The Company has determined that all leases under which they are the lessee to be operating leases.
The Company is the lessee in a lease contract when they obtain the right to control the asset. Operating lease
right-of-use ("ROU") assets represent the Company’s right to use an underlying asset for the lease term, and lease
liabilities represent the Company’s obligation to make lease payments arising from the lease, both of which are
recognized based on the present value of the future minimum lease payments over the lease term at the
commencement date. The Company determines the lease term by assuming the exercise of renewal options that
are reasonably certain. As most of the Company’s leases do not provide an implicit interest rate, the Company
uses their local incremental borrowing rate from the Federal Home Loan Bank (“FHLB”) for financing over the
period of the lease based on the information available at the commencement date in determining the present value
of future payments. ROU assets are included in other assets, while operating consolidated lease liabilities are
included in accrued expenses and other liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Refer to Note
13 for further discussion.
Leases with a lease term of 12 months or less at inception are not recorded on the Company’s consolidated balance
sheets and are expensed on a straight-line basis over the lease term in the Company’s consolidated statements of
operations.
Lessor
The Company has various arrangements for office spaces under which they are the lessor. These leases meet the
criteria for operating lease classification. Lease income associated with these leases is not material and is included
in rent and parking income in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.
Subsequent Events
The Company has evaluated subsequent events through January 31, 2020, which is the date the consolidated
financial statements were available to be issued.
Recent Accounting Pronouncements
Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments
In June 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued an accounting standards update which
will replace the current incurred loss impairment methodology in U.S. GAAP with a methodology that reflects the
expected credit losses. The update is intended to provide financial statement users with more decision-useful
information about expected credit losses. This update is effective on a modified retrospective basis for financial
statements issued for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2022. Early adoption is permitted for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2018 including interim periods in those fiscal years. The Company is currently
evaluating the effect the update will have on its consolidated financial statements.
Simplifying the Accounting for Income Taxes
In December 2019, the FASB issued an accounting standards update designed to reduce the complexity in
accounting for income taxes by removing certain exceptions and changing or clarifying certain recognition and
other requirements. The update is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2020, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2022, with early
application permitted. The Company is currently evaluating the effect the update will have on its consolidated
financial statements.
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1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Newly Adopted Accounting Principles
Recognition and Measurement of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
Effective January 1, 2018, the Company adopted the new accounting standard applicable to equity securities
prospectively, with a corresponding adjustment to the opening balance of the retained earnings. The adoption of
this guidance requires that certain equity instruments be measured at fair value, with changes in fair value
recognized in earnings. The guidance also provides an alternative to measure equity securities without readily
determinable fair values at cost less impairment (if any), plus or minus observable price changes from an identical
or similar investment of the same issuer. Adoption of the guidance resulted in a net loss on fair value of $6,336,903
for the year ended December 31, 2018 recognized in the consolidated statements of operations. Additionally, as of
January 1, 2018, the accumulated unrealized gain of $33,427,239 on equity available-for-sale securities was
reclassified from AOCI to retained earnings in the accompanying consolidated statements of changes in
stockholders’ equity for the year ended December 31, 2018. For additional information, see Note 2.
Technical Corrections and Improvements to Financial Instruments
Effective January 1, 2018, the Company adopted the new accounting standard applicable to technical corrections
and improvements to financial instruments prospectively. The adoption of this guidance clarifies the measurement
of equity securities without readily determinable fair values. Adoption of the guidance did not have a significant
effect in the consolidated financial statements.
Tax Effects in AOCI
Effective January 1, 2018, the Company adopted the new accounting standard applicable to the reclassification of
certain tax effects from AOCI. The adoption of this guidance permitted the Company to reclassify the income tax
effects of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (“TCJA”) on items within AOCI to retained earnings so that the tax effects of
items within AOCI reflect the appropriate tax rate. Adoption of the guidance resulted in a cumulative-effect
adjustment to retained earnings and AOCI of $6,062,722 resulting from stranded income tax effects from
accumulated gains and losses on available-for-sale securities as of January 1, 2018. For additional information,
see Note 9.
Revenue From Contracts with Customers
Effective January 1, 2018, the Company adopted the new accounting standard applicable to revenue from contracts
with customers using the modified retrospective approach. Refer to the paragraph “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” in Note 1 for more information.
Premium Amortization on Purchased Callable Debt Securities
Effective January 1, 2019, the Company adopted the new accounting standard applicable to the premium
amortization of certain callable debt securities. The adoption of this new guidance shortens the amortization period
for certain callable debt securities that are held at a premium by requiring such callable debt securities to be
amortized to the earliest call date. For securities held at a discount, the discount will continue to be amortized to
maturity. Adoption of the guidance did not have a significant effect in the consolidated financial statements.
Lease Accounting
Effective January 1, 2019, the Company adopted the new accounting standard applicable to leases (“ASC 842”).
The adoption of this guidance requires the Company to recognize operating lease right-of-use (“ROU”) assets,
representing their right to use the underlying asset for the lease term, and operating lease liabilities on the balance
sheet for all leases with lease terms greater than 12 months. The guidance also requires qualitative and quantitative
disclosures designed to assess the amount, timing and uncertainty of cash flows arising from leases. The Company
adopted ASC 842 using the modified retrospective method and utilized the optional transition method under which
they continue to apply the legacy guidance in ASC 840, Leases, including its disclosure requirements, in the
comparative period presented. As a result of the adoption, the Company’s operating lease ROU assets and
operating lease liabilities were $4,105,721 and $4,176,908, respectively, as of December 31, 2019. The adoption
of this standard did not impact the Company’s consolidated statements of operations or their consolidated
statements of cash flows. For additional information, see Note 13.
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FIRST MIAMI BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018
2.

INVESTMENT SECURITIES
The amortized cost and fair value of debt securities, with gross unrealized holding gains and losses are as follows:
December 31, 2019
Gross
Gross
Unrealized
Unrealized
Holding
Holding
Gains
Losses

Amortized
Cost

Fair
Value

Debt securities available-for-sale:
U.S. government agencies
Mortgage backed securities

$

19,871,047
26,095,748

$

65,409

$

(32,911)
(273,860)

$

19,838,136
25,887,297

$

45,966,795

$

65,409

$

(306,771)

$

45,725,433

$

37,612,005

$

562,809

$

(1,161,692)

$

37,013,122

$

36,356,180

Debt securities held-to-maturity:
Mortgage backed securities
Less: Unamortized non-credit
other-than-temporary
impairment losses recorded
in accumulated other
comprehensive income

(1,255,825)

December 31, 2018
Gross
Gross
Unrealized
Unrealized
Holding
Holding
Gains
Losses

Amortized
Cost

Fair
Value

Debt securities available-for-sale:
U.S. government agencies
Mortgage backed securities

$

19,867,713
20,510,275

$

1,138

$

(392,892)
(314,057)

$

19,474,821
20,197,356

$

40,377,988

$

1,138

$

(706,949)

$

39,672,177

$

45,637,815

$

198,714

$

(1,566,152)

$

44,270,377

$

44,291,903

Debt securities held-to-maturity:
Mortgage backed securities
Less: Unamortized non-credit
other-than-temporary
impairment losses recorded
in accumulated other
comprehensive income

(1,345,912)

The following table presents the fair value of the Company's marketable equity securities as of December 31:
2019

2018

Equity securities available-for-sale:
Common stock
Federal Home Loan Bank stock
Federal Reserve Bank stock

$

61,545,265
1,076,900
990,000

$

47,701,293
1,054,800
990,000

$

63,612,165

$

49,746,093

During the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, available-for-sale equity securities had unrealized gains
(losses) of approximately $13,844,000 and ($6,337,000), respectively, which is reflected in the accompanying
statements of operations.
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FIRST MIAMI BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018
2.

INVESTMENT SECURITIES (CONTINUED)
Federal Reserve Bank (“FRB”) stock is a restricted asset, carried at cost, and evaluated for impairment. The
Company did not recognize any impairment during the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018.
Investment securities with a carrying value of approximately $68,258,000 and $69,747,000 at December 31, 2019
and 2018, respectively, were pledged to secure public deposits, securities sold under agreements to repurchase,
and for other purposes required or permitted by law.
The amortized cost and fair value of debt securities, by contractual maturity, at December 31, 2019 are as follows:
Available-for-Sale
Amortized
Cost
Fair Value
Due in one year or less
Due after one year through five years
Due after five years through ten years
Due after ten years

Held-to-Maturity
Amortized
Cost
Fair Value

$

19,871,047
86
26,095,662

$

19,838,136
86
25,887,211

$

730,159
913,161
35,968,685

$

721,223
921,239
35,370,660

$

45,966,795

$

45,725,433

$

37,612,005

$

37,013,122

As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, 97% and 96%, respectively, of the equity securities measured at fair value
held by the Company consist of ownership in common stock of U.S. Bancorp. As of December 31, 2019 and 2018,
the Company held no trading securities.
There were no proceeds from the sales of available-for-sale securities for the years ended December 31, 2019 and
2018. There were no gross realized gains or losses at December 31, 2019 and 2018.
Information pertaining to securities with gross unrealized losses at December 31, 2019 and 2018, aggregated by
investment category and length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous loss position, are as
follows:
Less than
Twelve Months
Fair
Unrealized
Value
Losses
2019:
U.S. government agencies
Mortgage backed securities

$

Total
Fair
Value

Unrealized
Losses

4,990,345
7,609,929

$

(9,655)
(69,570)

$ 14,847,791
31,421,120

$

(23,256)
(1,365,982)

$

19,838,136
39,031,049

$

(32,911)
(1,435,552)

$ 12,600,274

$

(79,225)

$ 46,268,911

$ (1,389,238)

$

58,869,185

$

(1,468,463)

Less than
Twelve Months
Fair
Unrealized
Value
Losses
2018:
U.S. government agencies
Mortgage backed securities

Twelve
Months or More
Fair
Unrealized
Value
Losses

$

12,121,585

$ 12,121,585

$

Twelve
Months or More
Fair
Unrealized
Value
Losses

Total
Fair
Value

Unrealized
Losses

(151,517)

$ 19,474,821
39,587,450

$

(392,892)
(1,728,692)

$

19,474,821
51,709,035

$

(392,892)
(1,880,209)

$ (151,517)

$ 59,062,271

$ (2,121,584)

$

71,183,856

$

(2,273,101)

The Company is proactive in determining what possible negative effects could impact their investment portfolio.
The Company performs assessments to determine whether there have been any events or economic
circumstances to indicate that a security on which there is an unrealized loss is impaired on an other-thantemporary basis. Management considers many factors in their analysis including (1) the severity and duration of
the impairment, (2) the specific credit rating of the security, (3) the intent and ability to hold these securities for a
period of time until the value of the security recovers, (4) whether the current market is considered an inactive
market where most sales are considered distressed sales or disorderly transactions, and most importantly (5)
management estimates the portion of loss attributable to credit using a discounted cash flow model. The Company
estimates the expected cash flows of the underlying collateral using internal credit risk, interest rate and prepayment
risk models that incorporate management’s best estimate of current key assumptions, such as default rates, loss
severity and prepayment rates. Based on the expected cash flows derived from the model, the Company expects
to recover the remaining unrealized losses on the mortgage backed securities.
THE Community Bank since 1952!
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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FIRST MIAMI BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018
2.

INVESTMENT SECURITIES (CONTINUED)
At December 31, 2019 and 2018, U.S. government agencies securities had unrealized losses of approximately
$33,000 and $393,000, respectively. The unrealized losses relate principally to the impact of changes in interest
rates on a fixed market rate portfolio, credit spread widening and reduced liquidity in applicable markets.
Management attributes the decline in the fair value to changes in interest rates and not credit quality, and because
the Company has the ability and intent to hold these investments until market price recovery or maturity, these
investments are not considered other-than-temporarily impaired.
At December 31, 2019 and 2018, equity securities had unrealized losses of approximately $1,436,000 and
$1,880,000, respectively. U.S. home prices have stabilized as rates have increased from previously historic lows.
As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Company prepared discounted cash flow analyses for mortgage backed
securities that were in a significant unrealized loss position. As a result, the Company recorded an other-thantemporary impairment loss relating to credit totaling $32,059 and $25,214 for the years ended December 31, 2019
and 2018, respectively. The Company estimates the portion of loss attributable to credit using a discounted cash
flow model.
Management estimates the cash flows of the underlying collateral using internal credit risk and prepayment risk
models that incorporate management’s best estimate of current key assumptions, such as default rates, loss
severity and prepayment speed.
Assumptions used can vary widely from loan to loan, and are influenced by such factors as loan interest rate,
geographical location of the borrower, borrower characteristics and collateral type. The Bank then uses a third party
vendor to obtain information about the structure in order to determine how the underlying collateral cash flows will
be distributed to each security issued from the structure. Expected principal and interest cash flows on the impaired
debt security are discounted at a rate equal to the current yield of the security. For the years ended December 31,
2019 and 2018, the Bank’s weighted average prepayment speed (the percentage of the loan principal that has
historically been prepaid voluntarily), loss severity rate (the percentage of the principal on defaulted loans in the
pool that is deemed lost) and the default rate (the proportion of all loans outstanding in the pool which have
historically defaulted during the life of the security) for mortgage backed securities that were in a significant
unrealized loss position, are as follows:

2019
Prepayment speed (12 months)
Loss severity (12 months)
Default rate (12 months)

2018

8.9%
115.0%
4.8%

10.0%
92.1%
4.7%

As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Bank recorded other-than-temporary impairment losses on held-to-maturity
securities as follows:
2019
Other-than-temporary impairment recognized during the year
Unrealized other-than-temporary losses recognized in other
comprehensive income

$

Net impairment losses recognized in earnings

$

2018

32,059

$

32,059

25,214
-

$

THE Community Bank since 1952!
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FIRST MIAMI BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018
2.

INVESTMENT SECURITIES (CONTINUED)
The table below presents the activity for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 related to the credit
component recognized in earnings on debt securities held by the Bank for which a portion of the other-thantemporary impairment loss remains in AOCI:
2019
Total other-than-temporary impairment losses
Additions for the credit component on mortgage backed
securities on which other-than-temporary impairment losses
were not previously recognized
Net cumulative impairment losses recognized in earnings

3.

$

2,105,479

2018
$

32,059
$

2,137,538

2,080,265

25,214
$

2,105,479

LOANS, NET
The composition of loans, net, is as follows as of December 31:
2019
Commercial
Installment
Commercial and residential real estate
Home equity lines of credit

$

23,204,829
1,143,134
513,244,635
9,440,504

2018
$

547,033,102
Allowance for loan losses
Deferred loan fees
Loans, net

556,945,402

(7,460,670)
(35,660)
$

539,536,772

21,451,814
1,165,277
527,428,454
6,899,857

(7,263,087)
(159,017)
$ 549,523,298

A reconciliation of recorded investment in loans is as follows as of December 31:
2019

2018

Gross loans
Accrued interest receivable
Net deferred loan fees

$

547,033,102
1,157,133
(35,660)

$ 556,945,402
1,094,013
(159,017)

Recorded investment in loans

$

548,154,575

$ 557,880,398

THE Community Bank since 1952!
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FIRST MIAMI BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018
3.

LOANS, NET (CONTINUED)
An analysis of the allowance for loan losses is as follows for the years ended December 31:
2019
Allowance for loan losses, at beginning of year

$

2018

7,263,087

$

6,742,188

Charge-offs:
Commercial
Installment
Commercial real estate
Home equity line of credit

(6,700)
-

(375,350)
-

Total charge-offs

(6,700)

(375,350)

Recoveries:
Commercial
Installment
Commercial real estate
Home equity line of credit

85,653
-

11,643
200
74,144
-

85,653

85,987

78,953
118,630

(289,363)
810,262

Total recoveries
Net loan recoveries (charge offs)
Provision for loan losses
Allowance for loan losses, at end of year

$

7,460,670

$

7,263,087

The following presents the balance in the allowance for loan losses and loans by class of loans, and based on
impairment method as of December 31, 2019:

Installment

Commercial
Non-Real Estate
Secured

Commercial
and Residential
Real Estate

$

$

Rental Real
Estate

Home Equity
Lines of Credit

Total

Allowance for loan losses:
Individually evaluated for
impairment

$

Collectively evaluated for
impairment

-

20,992

483,628

Total ending allowance
balance

$

20,992

$

Loans:
Individually evaluated for
impairment

$

-

$

Collectively evaluated for
impairment
Total ending loan balance

1,143,134
$ 1,143,134

-

483,628

-

23,204,829

$

590,422

$

$

23,204,829
$

-

590,422

-

86,035,517

$

6,313,705

-

$

51,923

-

7,460,670

$

6,313,705

$

51,923

$

7,460,670

$

6,584,536

$

-

$

6,584,536

86,035,517
$

-

420,624,582
$

427,209,118

$

9,440,504

540,448,566

9,440,504

$ 547,033,102
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FIRST MIAMI BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018
3.

LOANS, NET (CONTINUED)
The following presents the balance in the allowance for loan losses and loans by class of loans, and based on
impairment method as of December 31, 2018:

Installment

Commercial
Non-Real Estate
Secured

Commercial
and Residential
Real Estate

$

$

Rental Real
Estate

Home Equity
Lines of Credit

Total

Allowance for loan losses:
Individually evaluated for
impairment

$

-

Collectively evaluated for
impairment

13,536

38,342

-

211,876

$

864,739

$

13,536

$

250,218

$

864,739

$

Loans:
Individually evaluated for
impairment

$

-

$

1,209,458

$

1,667,611

$

Total ending loan balance

1,165,277
$ 1,165,277

20,242,356
$

21,451,814

82,770,630
$

84,438,241

$

6,086,445

Total ending allowance
balance

Collectively evaluated for
impairment

-

$

38,342

48,149

6,086,445

-

442,990,213

7,224,745

$

48,149

$

7,263,087

$

-

$

2,877,069

442,990,213
$

-

$

6,899,857

554,068,333

6,899,857

$ 556,945,402

The following presents loans individually evaluated for impairment by class of loans as of December 31, 2019:
Unpaid
Principal
Balance

Average
Recorded
Investment

Related
Allowance

Income
Recognized

With no related allowance recorded:
Rental real estate

$

6,584,536

$

-

$

6,629,502

$

-

Total loans with no related allowance
recorded

$

6,584,536

$

-

$

6,629,502

$

-

The following presents loans individually evaluated for impairment by class of loans as of December 31, 2018:
Unpaid
Principal
Balance

Average
Recorded
Investment

Related
Allowance

Income
Recognized

With no related allowance recorded:
Rental real estate

$

1,667,611

$

-

$

1,703,075

$

-

Total loans with no related allowance
recorded

$

1,667,611

$

-

$

1,703,075

$

-

Commercial non-real estate secured

$

1,209,458

$

38,342

$

1,210,385

$

-

Total loans with an allowance recorded

$

1,209,458

$

38,342

$

1,210,385

$

-

Total loans

$

2,877,069

$

38,342

$

2,913,460

$

-

With a related allowance recorded:
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FIRST MIAMI BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018
3.

LOANS, NET (CONTINUED)
The following presents the balance in non-accrual loans and loans past due over 90 days and still accruing by class
of loans as of December 31, 2019:

Nonaccrual

Loans Over 90 Days
Past Due and Still
Accruing

Rental real estate

$

6,584,536

$

-

Total loans

$

6,584,536

$

-

The following presents the balance in non-accrual loans and loans past due over 90 days and still accruing by class
of loans as of December 31, 2018:

Nonaccrual

Loans Over 90 Days
Past Due and Still
Accruing

Commercial non-real estate secured
Rental real estate

$

1,209,458
1,667,611

$

-

Total loans

$

2,877,069

$

-

The following presents the aging of the past due loans as of December 31, 2019 by class of loans:
0 - 59
Days
Past due

60 - 89
Days
Past due

Greater
than 90 Days
Past due

Total Loans

Installment
Commercial non-real estate secured
Commercial and residential real estate
Rental real estate
Home equity lines of credit

$

1,143,134
23,123,625
86,035,517
421,283,460
9,341,993

$

81,204
98,511

$

5,925,658
-

$

Total

$ 540,927,729

$

179,715

$

5,925,658

$ 547,033,102

1,143,134
23,204,829
86,035,517
427,209,118
9,440,504

The following presents the aging of the past due loans as of December 31, 2018 by class of loans:
0 - 59
Days
Past due

60 - 89
Days
Past due

Greater
than 90 Days
Past due

Total Loans

Installment
Commercial non-real estate secured
Commercial and residential real estate
Rental real estate
Home equity lines of credit

$

1,165,277
21,451,814
84,438,241
441,130,248
6,899,857

$

192,354
-

$

1,667,611
-

$

1,165,277
21,451,814
84,438,241
442,990,213
6,899,857

Total

$ 555,085,437

$

192,354

$

1,667,611

$ 556,945,402

The grading analysis estimates the capability of the borrower to repay the contractual obligation of the loan
agreement as scheduled or at all. The Bank’s internal credit risk grading system is based on experiences with
similarly graded loans. Credit risk grades are refreshed each quarter as they become available, at which time
management analyzes the resulting scores, as well as other external statistics and factors, to track loan
performance.
THE Community Bank since 1952!
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FIRST MIAMI BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018
3.

LOANS, NET (CONTINUED)
As of December 31, 2019, and based on the most recent analysis performed, the risk categories of loans by class
of loans are as follows:

Pass

Special Mention

Substandard

Total

Installment
Commercial non-real estate secured
Commercial and residential real estate
Rental real estate
Home equity lines of credit

$

1,143,134
22,802,672
81,623,057
406,933,386
9,440,504

$

1,868,311
9,581,987
-

$

402,157
2,544,149
10,693,745
-

$

Total

$ 521,942,753

$

11,450,298

$

13,640,051

$ 547,033,102

1,143,134
23,204,829
86,035,517
427,209,118
9,440,504

As of December 31, 2018, and based on the most recent analysis performed, the risk categories of loans by class
of loans are as follows:

Pass

Special Mention

Substandard

Installment
Commercial non-real estate secured
Commercial and residential real estate
Rental real estate
Home equity lines of credit

$

1,165,277
19,581,913
81,377,895
431,253,285
6,899,857

$

5,035,324
-

$

1,869,901
3,060,346
6,701,604
-

Total

$ 540,278,227

$

5,035,324

$

11,631,851

Total
$

1,165,277
21,451,814
84,438,241
442,990,213
6,899,857

$ 556,945,402

The Company’s loan portfolio includes loans that have been modified in a TDR, where economic concessions have
been granted to borrowers who have experienced or are expected to experience financial difficulties. The
concessions are given after careful consideration of the individual borrower’s financial ability. The concessions
could include reduction in interest rate, payment extensions, forgiveness of interest, forbearance, or other actions.
Certain TDR’s are classified as nonperforming at the time of the restructure and are returned to performing status
after considering the borrower’s sustained repayment performance.
The Company had troubled debt restructured loans as follows:
As of December 31, 2019

Commercial non-real estate secured

Number of

Recorded

Loans

Investment

5

$

1,312,262

As of December 31, 2018
Number of
Loans
Commercial non-real estate secured

2

Recorded
Investment
$

1,209,458

The Company had no modifications with defaults for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018.
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FIRST MIAMI BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018
4.

PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT, NET
A summary of the cost and accumulated depreciation and amortization of premises and equipment, net, as follows
as of December 31:
2019
Leasehold improvements
Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Building
Land

$

Accumulated depreciation and amortization
$

2018

5,827,318
7,201,583
3,723,667
2,762,293

$

5,805,657
6,671,797
3,713,710
2,762,293

19,514,861

18,953,457

(11,665,853)

(10,986,175)

7,849,008

$

7,967,282

Depreciation and amortization of premises and equipment amounted to $403,737 and $313,387 for the years ended
December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively.
5.

FORECLOSED ASSETS
As of December 31, 2019, foreclosed assets were as follows:
Balance at beginning of year
Additions
Sales
Impairment charge

$

2,112,000
-

Balance at end of year

$

2,112,000

The Company had no foreclosed assets as of December 31, 2018.
Expenses applicable to foreclosed assets include the following for the year ended December 31, 2019:

6.

Impairment charge
Operating expenses

$

98,813

Foreclosed assets expenses

$

98,813

TIME DEPOSITS
At December 31, 2019, the scheduled maturities of time deposits are as follows:
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024

$

72,618,605
13,401,665
1,544,209
688,829
2,276,560

$

90,529,868

The aggregate amount of overdrawn demand deposits reclassified as loan balances as of December 31, 2019 and
2018, amounted to $381,986 and $407,897, respectively.
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FIRST MIAMI BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018
7.

SECURITIES SOLD UNDER AGREEMENTS TO REPURCHASE
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase generally mature within one to four days from the transaction date.
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase are reflected at the amount of cash received in connection with
the transaction. The Company is required to provide additional collateral based on the fair value of the underlying
securities (see Note 2). As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the securities pledged for repurchase agreements
were sufficient to cover the agreements.
The Bank enters into sales of securities under agreements to repurchase (overnight), which are reflected as
securities sold under agreements to repurchase in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.
The following table presents a summary of the Company’s securities sold under agreements to repurchase as of
December 31:
2019
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase
Approximate carrying value of securities pledged for
repurchase agreements
Maximum amount outstanding at any
month-end during the year
Average amount outstanding during the year
Weighted-average interest rate for the year

8.

2018

$

29,565,704

$

34,969,367

$

41,749,353

$

42,085,633

$

39,428,259

$

42,594,599

$

32,158,597

$

34,831,701

0.29%

0.28%

NOTES PAYABLE
In February 2017, the Company borrowed $10,000,000 from a financial institution under a promissory note bearing
interest at the daily LIBOR plus 0.65% (2.45% and 3.17% at December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively). The
promissory note requires quarterly interest payments and any remaining principal balance and accrued interest will
be due at maturity in February 2020. The note is secured by securities and other investment property. At December
31, 2019 and 2018, the balance outstanding was $10,000,000.
Interest expense was approximately $292,000 and $270,000 for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018,
respectively.
In August 2018, the Company borrowed $10,000,000 from a financial institution under a promissory note bearing
interest at a fixed rate of 2.69%. The promissory note requires quarterly interest payments and any remaining
principal balance and accrued interest will be due at maturity in February 2020. The note is secured by securities
and other investment property. At December 31, 2019 and 2018, the balance outstanding was $10,000,000, which
will be fully repaid at maturity.
Interest expense was approximately $273,000 and $105,000 for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018,
respectively.
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FIRST MIAMI BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018
9.

INCOME TAXES
The provision for income taxes for the years ended December 31, is as follows:
2019
Current
Federal
State

$

Deferred
Federal
State

$

2018

1,571,106
164,882

$

1,839,059
263,970

1,735,988

2,103,029

2,631,735
273,070

(1,427,317)
(395,579)

2,904,805

(1,822,896)

4,640,793

$

280,133

On December 22, 2017, the TCJA was enacted into law. The TCJA provides for significant changes to the U.S.
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), that impact corporate taxation requirements, such as
the reduction of the federal tax rate for corporations from 34% to 21% and changes or limits to certain tax
deductions. Under U.S. GAAP, these net deferred tax liabilities are required to be revalued during the period in
which the new tax legislation is enacted. The revaluation resulted in a one-time tax benefit of approximately $5
million. The Company’s effective tax rate beginning in 2018 was reduced to 21% due to this new tax legislation.
On January 2018, the Bank adopted ASU 2018-02 – Tax Effects in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income.
The adoption of this guidance permitted the Bank to reclassify the income tax effects of the TCJA on items within
AOCI to retained earnings so that the tax effects of items within AOCI reflect the appropriate tax rate. The adoption
of this guidance resulted in a cumulative-effect adjustment to retained earnings and AOCI of approximately $6
million.
The reasons for the differences between the statutory federal income tax rate and the effective tax rate are
summarized as follows:
2019
Tax at federal statutory rate
Increase (decrease) in tax:
State income tax-net
Personal holding company tax
Dividends received deduction and other
expenses not deductible for tax purposes
Change in tax rate
Other

2018

21.0%

21.0%

1.5%
0.6%

-3.3%
2.5%

-2.9%
0.5%
-0.5%

-11.2%
0.0%
0.0%

20.2%

9.0%
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FIRST MIAMI BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018
9.

INCOME TAXES (CONTINUED)
The components of the net deferred tax liability are as follows at December 31:
2019
Assets:
Net unrealized loss on securities held-to-maturity
Allowance for loan losses and interest on non-accrual loans
Other-than-temporary impairment
Deferred loan fees

$

307,951
2,284,253
524,163
8,745

Liabilities:
Depreciation
Net unrealized gain on securities available-for-sale

Deferred income tax liability, net

$

2018

$

341,121
2,044,947
533,635
40,303

3,125,112

2,960,006

(144,539)
(12,761,479)

(119,832)
(9,563,404)

(12,906,018)

(9,683,236)

(9,780,906)

$

(6,723,230)

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, management considered whether it is more likely than not that
some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is
dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which those temporary differences
become deductible. Management considers the schedule reversal of deferred tax liabilities, projected future taxable
income, and tax planning strategies in making this assessment.
The U.S. Federal jurisdiction and the State of Florida are the major tax jurisdictions where the Company files income
tax returns. The Company is no longer subject to U.S. Federal or State examinations by tax authorities for years
beginning before 2016.
For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Company did not have any unrecognized tax benefits as a
result of tax positions taken during a prior period or during the current period. No interest or penalties have been
recorded as a result of tax uncertainties.
10.

NON-INTEREST INCOME
The following table presents the Company’s sources of non-interest income:
2019
Non-interest income
Service charges on deposits
Overdraft fees
Maintenance fees
ATM fees
Safe deposit fees
Merchant fees
Other
Wealth management fees
Dividend
Rent
Parking
Other

Total non-interest income

$

718,806
208,117
135,169
111,319
74,110
196,569
2,046,204
1,573,028
110,193
6,480
27,463

$ 5,207,458
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2018

$

582,215
185,955
140,902
121,220
66,217
192,517
1,850,872
1,307,375
210,997
130,121
28,131

$ 4,816,522

FIRST MIAMI BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018
11.

OFF-BALANCE-SHEET ACTIVITIES
Credit Related Financial Instruments
The Company is a party to credit related financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk in the normal course of
business to meet the financing needs of its customers. These financial instruments include commitments to extend
credit and standby letters of credit. Such commitments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit and interest
rate risk in excess of the amount recognized in the consolidated balance sheets.
The Company’s exposure to credit loss is represented by the contractual amount of these commitments. The
Company follows the same credit policies in making commitments as it does for on-balance-sheet instruments.
At December 31, 2019 and 2018, the following financial instruments whose contract amounts represent credit risk
were outstanding:
Contract Amount
2019
2018
Commitments to extend credit
Unfunded commitments under lines of credit
Commercial and standby letters of credit

$ 157,064,324
51,785,831
2,580,059

$ 152,342,019
58,176,032
507,500

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any condition
established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and
may require payment of a fee. The commitments for equity lines of credit may expire without being drawn upon.
Therefore, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements. The amount of
collateral obtained, if it is deemed necessary by the Company, is based on management’s credit evaluation of the
customer.
Unfunded commitments under commercial lines-of-credit, revolving credit lines and overdraft protection
agreements are commitments for possible future extensions of credit to existing customers.
Commercial and standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by the Company to guarantee the
performance of a customer to a third party. Those letters of credit are primarily issued to support public and private
borrowing arrangements.
Essentially all letters of credit issued have expiration dates within one year. The credit risk involved in issuing letters
of credit is essentially the same as that involved in extending loan facilities to customers. The Company generally
holds collateral supporting those commitments, if deemed necessary. At December 31, 2019 and 2018, the
Company’s reserve for credit losses relating to these financial instruments amounted to approximately
$369,000 and $294,000, respectively. Such reserve has been included in the caption accrued expenses and other
liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets.
12.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Litigation
Various legal claims arise from time to time in the normal course of business, which in the opinion of management,
will not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
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FIRST MIAMI BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018
12.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)
Data Processing Agreements
In May 2015, the Company entered into a data processing agreement with a third party servicer. The agreement
expires on June 30, 2021. The agreement provides for a minimum monthly fee and variable charges for additional
services, subject to adjustments based on transaction volume and other factors. For the years ended December
31, 2019 and 2018, processing fees under this agreement amounted to approximately $1,976,000 and $1,441,000,
respectively. The approximate commitment under the agreement, including fixed and variable charges based on
current utilization, is as follows:

Year ending December 31:

Amount

2020
2021

750,000
375,000
$

1,125,000

In addition, the Company utilizes other data processing services. For the years ended December 31, 2019 and
2018, data processing fees for such services amounted to approximately $94,000 and $109,000, respectively.
Concentration of Credit Risk
Credit risk represents the maximum accounting loss that would be recognized at the reporting date if counterparties
failed completely to perform as contracted and any collateral or security proved to be of no value. Concentrations
of credit risk (whether on or off-balance sheet) arising from financial instruments exist in relation to certain groups
of customers. A group concentration arises when a number of counterparties have similar economic characteristics
that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic or
other conditions. The Company does not have a significant exposure to any individual customer or counterparty.
Most of the Bank's business activity is with customers located within its primary market area, which generally
includes South Miami and the surrounding areas in Miami-Dade County, Florida. This market area does not depend
heavily on any particular industry.
13.

OPERATING LEASES
The Company rents its office space and parking lot facilities from an affiliated company through an operating lease
expiring in 2020. Additionally, the Company rents office space through an operating lease that expires in 2026 with
three renewal options of five years each. The Company believes that these renewal options will be exercised and
there are no plans to terminate the lease, therefore, renewal options are reflected in the ROU asset. The Company
is obligated to pay for property taxes, insurance and maintenance for these leases. In addition, the Company rents
office equipment through operating leases expiring through 2022.
Operating lease assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2019 are as follows:

Operating lease ROU assets, net

$

4,105,721

Current portion of operating lease liabilities
Noncurrent portion of operating lease liabilities
Total operating lease liabilities

$

398,635
3,778,273
4,176,908

$

Operating lease ROU assets are included in other assets, while operating lease liabilities are included in accrued
expenses and other liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.
Total operating lease costs were approximately $877,000 and $787,000 for the years ended December 31, 2019
and 2018, respectively. Cash amounts included in the measurement of operating lease liabilities was approximately
$711,000 for the year ended December 31, 2019. Operating lease ROU assets obtained in exchange for operating
lease obligations were approximately $4,744,000 for the year ended December 31, 2019.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018
13.

OPERATING LEASES (CONTINUED)
Information associated with the measurement of the remaining operating lease obligations as of December 31,
2019 is as follows:

Weighted-average remaining lease term in years
Weighted-average discount rate

19.78
3.26%

Estimated future minimum lease payments, exclusive of taxes and other charges are as follows:

Year ending December 31:

Amount

2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
Thereafter

489,617
255,683
234,732
200,662
206,682
4,545,340

Total operating lease payments
Less: Imputed interest

5,932,716
1,755,808
$

4,176,908

The Company subleased office spaces on a month-to-month basis to various tenants. Sublease income for the
year ended December 31, 2018, totaled $114,998. As of July 1, 2018, the Company is no longer sub-leasing space.
14.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
In the ordinary course of business, the Company grants loans to and accepts deposits from officers and directors.
Changes in related party loans are as follows:
2019

2018

Beginning balance
Payments

$

5,329,888
(89,579)

$

5,613,032
(283,144)

Ending balance

$

5,240,309

$

5,329,888

At December 31, 2019 and 2018, officers and directors were indebted to the Bank in the aggregate amount of
approximately $5,240,000 and $5,330,000, respectively. During the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018,
the Bank recognized interest income on loans to related parties of approximately $221,000 each year, which is
included in interest income – loans in the accompanying statements of operations. These loans were made in the
ordinary course of business and interest rate on loans to related parties range between 4.00% and 6.25%.
At December 31, 2019 and 2018, the majority stockholders of the Company own a significant interest in an
insurance agency that provides commercial and group insurance coverage to the Bank. During 2019 and 2018, the
Bank paid premiums of approximately $428,000 and $441,000, respectively, to this insurance agency. In addition,
during 2019 and 2018, the Bank paid approximately $1,400,000 and $1,300,000, respectively, for health insurance
for employees.
Deposits from related parties held by the Company at December 31, 2019 and 2018, totaled approximately
$30,485,000 and $18,792,000, respectively. During the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Company
paid interest on deposits from related parties of approximately $115,000 and $97,000, respectively, which is
included in interest expense – deposits in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations. Interest rate
paid on deposits from related parties was 0.70%.
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14.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
At December 31, 2019 and 2018, the majority stockholders of the Company own a significant interest in a company
that leases a building and a parking lot to the Bank (NOTE 13). During the years ended December 31, 2019 and
2018, the Bank paid rent totaling approximately $496,000 and $479,000, respectively, to the affiliated company.
From time to time, the Bank pays operating expenses of the property on behalf of the related party. At December
31, 2018, the Bank had a receivable from the related party of approximately $89,000. At December 31, 2019, the
Bank had a payable to related party of approximately $51,000.

15.

REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS AND RESTRICTIONS
The Bank is subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal banking agencies.
Failure to meet minimum regulatory capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory, and possible additional
discretionary actions by regulators that if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the Bank’s consolidated
financial statements. Under the capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective
action, the Bank must meet specific capital guidelines involving quantitative measures of their assets, liabilities,
and certain off-balance-sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The capital amounts and
classifications are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk weightings, and
other factors. Prompt corrective action provisions are not applicable to bank holding companies.
Effective January 1, 2015 (with some changes transitioned into full effectiveness over two to four years), the Bank
became subject to new capital requirements adopted by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”).
These new requirements create a new required ratio for common equity to tier 1 capital, increase the leverage and
tier 1 capital ratios, change the risk weight of certain assets for purposes of the risk-based capital ratios, create an
additional capital conservation buffer over the required capital ratios and change what qualifies as capital for
purposes of meeting these various capital requirements. Beginning in 2016, failure to maintain the required capital
conservation buffer will limit the ability of the Bank to pay dividends, repurchase shares or pay discretionary
bonuses.
Under the new capital regulations, the minimum capital ratios are: (1) common equity tier 1 capital ratio of 4.5% of
risk-weighted assets, (2) a tier 1 capital ratio of 6.0% of risk-weighted assets, (3) a total capital ratio of 8.0% of riskweighted assets, and (4) a tier 1 capital to average assets ratio of 4.0%. Common equity tier 1 capital generally
consists of common stock and retained earnings, subject to applicable regulatory adjustments and deductions.
The Bank has elected to permanently opt-out of the inclusion of accumulated other comprehensive income in the
capital calculations, as permitted by the regulations. This opt-out will reduce the impact of market volatility on the
regulatory capital levels.
The Bank will have to maintain a capital conservation buffer consisting of additional common equity tier 1 capital
greater than 2.5% to risk-weighted assets above the required minimum levels. This new capital conservation buffer
requirement was phased in beginning in January 2016 at 0.635% of risk-weighted assets and increasing each year
until fully implemented in January 2019. The Bank is in compliance with this requirement as of December 31, 2019.
The FDIC’s prompt corrective action standards also changed effective January 1, 2015. Under the new standards,
in order to be considered well-capitalized, the Bank must have a common equity tier 1 capital ratio of 6.5% (new),
a tier 1 ratio of 8.0% (increased from 6.0%), a total risk-based capital ratio of 10.0% (unchanged) and a leverage
ratio of 5.0% (unchanged). The Bank meets all these new requirements, including the full capital conservation
buffer.
As of December 31, 2019, the Bank was well capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective
action. There are no conditions or events since December 31, 2019, that management believes have changed the
Bank’s category.
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15.

REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS AND RESTRICTIONS (CONTINUED)
The Bank’s actual capital amounts and ratios as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, are presented in the following
tables (dollars in thousands):

ACTUAL
Amount

MINIMUM TO BE
WELL CAPITALIZED
UNDER PROMPT
CORRECTIVE ACTION
Amount
Ratio

FOR CAPITAL
ADEQUACY
PURPOSES
Amount
Ratio

Ratio

As of December 31, 2019:
Total Risk-Based Capital
to Risk-Weighted Assets:
Bank

$

88,072

16.2%

$

43,524

8.0%

$

54,405

10.0%

Tier 1 Capital to RiskWeighted Assets:
Bank

$

81,259

14.9%

$

21,762

4.0%

$

43,524

8.0%

Tier 1 Capital to Average
Total Assets:
Bank

$

81,259

9.8%

$

49,689

6.0%

$

41,407

5.0%

Common Equity Tier 1
Capital to Risk-Weighted
Assets:
Bank

$

81,259

14.9%

$

24,482

4.5%

$

35,363

6.5%

ACTUAL
Amount

MINIMUM TO BE
WELL CAPITALIZED
UNDER PROMPT
CORRECTIVE ACTION
Amount
Ratio

FOR CAPITAL
ADEQUACY
PURPOSES
Amount
Ratio

Ratio

As of December 31, 2018:
Total Risk-Based Capital
to Risk-Weighted Assets:
Bank

$

81,361

15.0%

$

43,377

8.0%

$

54,221

10.0%

Tier 1 Capital to RiskWeighted Assets:
Bank

$

74,574

13.8%

$

21,688

4.0%

$

43,377

8.0%

Tier 1 Capital to Average
Total Assets:
Bank

$

74,574

10.4%

$

42,954

6.0%

$

35,795

5.0%

Common Equity Tier 1
Capital to Risk-Weighted
Assets:
Bank

$

74,574

13.8%

$

24,400

4.5%

$

35,244

6.5%
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16.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
FASB Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 820, Fair Value Measurement, provides the framework for
measuring fair value. That framework provides a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs
(Level 3 measurements).
The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under FASB ASC 820 are described as follows:
Level 1 – Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in active
markets that the Company has the ability to access.
Level 2 – Inputs to the valuation methodology include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets;
quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets; inputs other than quoted prices that are
observable for the asset or liability; inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market
data by correlation or other means. If the asset or liability has a specified (contractual) term, the Level 2 input must
be observable for substantially the full term of the asset or liability.
Level 3 – Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value measurement.
The asset or liability’s fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of
any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation techniques used need to maximize the use of
the observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs.
The following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair value. There have
been no changes in the methodologies used at December 31, 2019 and 2018.
The fair value of the following instruments approximates their carrying value because of the short maturity of these
instruments: cash and due from banks, accrued interest receivable, accrued interest payable and federal funds
payable.
Investment securities – Fair values for securities, excluding FRB and FHLB stock, are based on quoted market
prices. The carrying value of FRB stock approximates fair value based on the redemption provisions of the FRB.
Investments in FHLB stock are recorded at cost, which approximates fair value. The Company’s common stock is
classified in Level 1.
When instruments are traded in secondary markets and quoted market prices do not exist for such securities, or
positions within a market sector has slowed significantly, the Company generally relies on internal valuation
techniques or on prices obtained from independent vendors. The majority of fair values derived using internal
valuation techniques are verified against multiple pricing sources, including prices obtained from independent
vendors.
Vendors compile prices from various sources and often apply matrix pricing for similar securities when no price is
observable. The Company reviews pricing methodologies provided by the vendors in order to determine if
observable market information is being used, versus unobservable inputs. When evaluating the appropriateness of
an internal trader price compared to vendor prices, considerations include the range and quality of vendor prices.
Vendor prices are used to ensure the reasonableness of the trader price; however, valuing financial instruments
involves judgments acquired from knowledge of a particular market and is not perfunctory. If a trader asserts that
a vendor price is not reflective of market value, justification for using the trader price, including recent sales activity
where possible, must be provided to and approved by the appropriate levels of management. Similarly, while
securities available-for-sale traded in secondary markets are typically valued using a vendor price, these prices are
reviewed and, if deemed inappropriate by a trader who has the most knowledge of a particular market, can be
adjusted. Securities measured with these internal valuation techniques are generally classified within Level 2 of
the hierarchy and often involve using quoted market prices for similar securities, pricing models or discounted cash
flow analyses using inputs observable in the market where available. The Company’s U.S. government agency
securities and mortgage backed securities are classified in Level 2.
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16.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Loans, net – For variable-rate loans that reprice frequently and with no significant change in credit risk, fair values
are based on carrying values. Fair values for other loans are estimated using discounted cash flow analyses, using
interest rates currently being offered for loans with similar terms to borrowers of similar credit quality. Fair values
for non-performing loans are estimated using discounted cash flow analyses or underlying collateral values, where
applicable.
Deposits – The fair values disclosed for demand deposits (e.g., interest and non-interest checking, savings, and
certain types of money market accounts) are, by definition, equal to the amount payable on demand at the reporting
date (i.e., their carrying amounts). The carrying amounts of variable-rate, fixed-term money market accounts and
certificates of deposit approximate their fair values at the reporting date. Fair values for fixed-rate certificates of
deposit are estimated using a discounted cash flow calculation that applies interest rates currently being offered
on certificates to a schedule of aggregated expected monthly maturities on time deposits.
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase – The carrying amounts of borrowings under repurchase
agreements, maturing within ninety days, approximate their fair values.
Off-balance sheet instruments – Fair values for off-balance-sheet, credit-related financial instruments, are based
on fees currently charged to enter into similar agreements, taking into account the remaining terms of the
agreements and the counterparties’ credit standing. The fair value as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, is nominal.
Items Measured at Fair Value On a Recurring Basis
The following table presents the Company’s assets that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis at
December 31, 2019 and 2018, for each fair value hierarchy levels.

Description
U.S. government agencies
Mortgage backed securities
Common stock

$

$

Description
U.S. government agencies
Mortgage backed securities
Common stock

$

$

12/31/2019
19,838,136
25,887,297
61,545,265
107,270,698

12/31/2018
19,474,821
20,197,356
47,701,293
87,373,470

Fair Value Measurement at Reporting Date Using:
Quoted Prices
in Active
Significant Other
Significant Other
Markets for
Observable
Unobservable
Identical Assets
Inputs
Inputs
(Level 1)
(Level 2)
(Level 3)
$
$
19,838,136
$
25,887,297
61,545,265
$

61,545,265

$

45,725,433

$

-

Fair Value Measurement at Reporting Date Using:
Quoted Prices
in Active
Significant Other
Significant Other
Markets for
Observable
Unobservable
Identical Assets
Inputs
Inputs
(Level 1)
(Level 2)
(Level 3)
$
$
19,474,821
$
20,197,356
47,701,293
$

47,701,293

$

39,672,177

$

-

There were no recurring liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis at December 31, 2019 and 2018.
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FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Items Measured at Fair Value on a Nonrecurring Basis
Impaired Loans
The Company uses third party appraisals to assist in measuring impairment on collateral dependent impaired loans.
These appraisals generally use the market or income approach valuation technique and use market observable
data to formulate an opinion of the fair value of the loan’s collateral.
However, the appraiser uses professional judgment in determining the fair value of the collateral properties and the
Company may also adjust the values for changes in market conditions subsequent to the appraisal date. When
current appraisals are not available for certain loans, the Company uses their judgment on market conditions to
adjust the most current appraisal.
The sales prices may reflect prices of sales contracts not closed and the amount of time required to sell out the
real estate project may be derived from current appraisals of similar projects. At December 31, 2019 and 2018,
the Company had impaired loans with a fair value of $6,584,536 and $2,838,727, respectively. The Company’s
impaired loans are included in level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.
The following table represents the Bank’s financial instruments measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis at
December 31, 2019 and 2018, for each of the fair value hierarchy levels.

Description
Impaired loans

Description
Impaired loans

$

$

12/31/2019
6,584,536

Fair Value Measurement at Reporting Date Using:
Quoted Prices
in Active
Significant Other
Significant Other
Markets for
Observable
Unobservable
Identical Assets
Inputs
Inputs
(Level 1)
(Level 2)
(Level 3)
$
$
$
6,584,536

12/31/2018
2,838,727

Fair Value Measurement at Reporting Date Using:
Quoted Prices
in Active
Significant Other
Significant Other
Markets for
Observable
Unobservable
Identical Assets
Inputs
Inputs
(Level 1)
(Level 2)
(Level 3)
$
$
$
2,838,727
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FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
The estimated fair values and related approximate carrying amounts, of the Company's financial instruments at
December 31, 2019 and 2018, are as follows:
2019

Financial Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investment Securities
Loans, net
Accrued interest receivable

Carrying
Amount

Fair Value

$ 210,449,000
145,694,000
539,537,000
1,453,000

$ 210,449,000
146,351,000
519,845,000
1,453,000

636,642,000
90,530,000
29,566,000
20,000,000
182,000

610,272,000
91,249,000
28,311,000
20,006,000
182,000

Financial Liabilities:
Demand, now accounts, savings and money
market accounts
Time deposits
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase
Notes payable
Accrued interest payable

2018

Carrying
Amount
Financial Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investment Securities
Loans, net
Accrued interest receivable
Financial Liabilities:
Demand, now accounts, savings and money
market accounts
Time deposits
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase
Notes payable
Accrued interest payable

$

76,060,000
133,710,000
549,523,000
1,418,000

514,741,000
90,044,000
34,969,000
20,000,000
168,000
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Fair Value
$

76,060,000
133,689,000
521,183,000
1,418,000

474,505,000
89,921,000
30,822,000
19,982,000
168,000
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